UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NASHVILLE DIVISION

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE 20811 APR -7 P 2: 28

Yo

MISTY BLU STEWART, on behalf ) Ml g
of herself and all others similarly situated, )
)
Plaintiff, )
) No.:
VS. ) Judge:
)
CUS NASHVILLE, LLC, COYOTE UGLY )
SALOON DEVELOPMNT CORP., COYOTE )
UGLY ENTERTAINMENT, INC,, )
and LILIANA LOVELL, )
)
Defendants. )
COMPLAINT

Comes the representative Plaintiff, Misty Blu Stewart, pursuant to Section 216(b) of the
Fair Labor Standards Act (hereinafter "FLSA"), and files this lawsuit against Defendants for
herself and all others similarly situated, and for her cause of action states as follows:

1. Defendant CUS Nashville, LLC (“CUSN™) is a limited liability company created
under the laws of the State of Tennessee which does business in Nashville, Davidson County.
_Specifically, CUS Nashville, LLC does business as Coyote Ugly. Saloon. Its registered agent for
service of process is BMN Corporate Services, Inc., 511 Union Street, Suite 1600, Nashville,
Tennessee 37219.

2. Defendant Coyote Ugly Saloon Development Corp. ("CUSDC") is a Delaware
corporation. Its registered agent for service of process is The Corporation Trust Company,
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801.

3. Defendant Coyote Ugly Entertainment, Inc. ("CUEI") is a Delaware corporation. Its

registered agent for service of process is The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust
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Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801.

4. Defendant, Liliana Lovell, is, on information and belief, a shareholder and Chief
Executive Officer of CUSN, CUSDC and CUEI and has operatiénal control over the companies.
Defendant Lovell may be served at 5929 Chestnut Street, New Orleans, LA 70115.

5. Defendants CUSDC and CUEI are Delaware corporations that own and operate a
chain of bars operating under the trade name “Coyote Ugly Saloon” in at least the states of
Tennessee, Colorado, Florida, Louisiana, New York, Oklahoma .and Texas, including Defendant
CUSN. On information and belief, the bars owned and operated by Defendants CUSDC and
CUEI are wholly owned or majority-owned subsidiaries of Defendants CUSDC and CUEL
While these subsidiaries may be formally separate companies, they are managed as a single
entity, at least for employment purposes, and all business énd personnel policies for the
subsidiaries are promulgated by Defendants CUSDC and CUEL Furthermore, Defendants
CUSDC and CUEI are an “employer” under the FLSA and acted as such in relation to Plaintiff
and other similarly situated plaintiffs.

6. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 US.C.
Section 1331.

7. At all times material to this action, Defendant CUSN was an enterprise engaged in
commerce or in the production of goods for commerce as defined by Section 203(s)(1) of the

FLSA, and had annual gross volume of sales which exceeded $500,000.00.

8. At all times material to this action, Defendant CUSDC was an enterprise engaged in
commerce or in the production of goods for commerce as defined by Section 203(s)(1) of the
FLSA, and had annual gross volume of sales which exceeded $500,000.00.

9. At all times material to this action, Defendant CUSE was an enterprise engaged in
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commerce or in the production of goods for commerce as defined by Section 203(s)(1) of the
FLSA, and had annual gross volume of sales which exceeded $500,000.00.

10.  Plaintiff was employed by Defendants within the last three years before the filing
of this lawsuit.

11.  While Plaintiff worked for Defendants, Defendant CUSN was an "employer" of
Plaintiff as defined by Section 203(d) of the FLSA.

12. While Plaintiff worked for Defendants, Defendant CUSDC was an "employer" of
Plaintiff as defined by Section 203(d) of the FLSA.

13. While Plaintiff worked for Defendants, Defendant CUEI was an "employer" of
Plaintiff as defined by Section 203(d) of the FLSA.

14. While Plaintiff worked for Defendants, Defendant Lovell was an "employer" of
Plaintiff as defined by Section 203(d) of the FLSA.

15.  While Plaintiff worked for Defendant CUSN, Plaintiff was an "employee" of
Defendant CUSN as defined by Section 203(e)(1) of the FLSA, and worked for Defendant
CUSN within the territory of the United States within three years preceding the filing of this
lawsuit.

16.  While Plaintiff worked for Defendant CUSDC, Plaintiff was an "employee" of
Defendant CUSDC as defined by Section 203(e)(1) of the FLSA, and worked for Defendant
CUSDC within the territory of the United States within three years preceding the filing of this
lawsuit.

17.  While Plaintiff worked for Defendant CUEI, Plaintiff was an "employee" of
Defendant CUEI as defined by Section 203(e)(1) of the FLSA, and worked for Defendant CUEIL

within the territory of the United States within three years preceding the filing of this lawsuit.
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18. While Plaintiff worked for Defendant Lovell, Plaintiff was an "employee" of
Defendant Lovell as defined by Section 203(e)(1) of the FLSA, and worked for Defendant
Lovell within the territory of the United States within three years preceding the filing of this
lawsuit.

19. The minimum wage and overtime provisions of the FLSA set forth in
Sections 206 and 207, respectively, apply to Defendants.

Minimum Wage Violations

20.  While Plaintiff was employed by Defendants .'as a bartender in Defendants’
Nashville bar, Plaintiff was an hourly employee who was entitled to minimum wages, pursuant
to Section 206 of the FLSA.

21.  Defendants paid Plaintiff less than the minimum wage, taking advantage of a
tipped credit of $2.13, which allows Defendants to include in its calculation of Plaintiff's wages
any amounts that Plaintiff received in tips, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 203(m).

22.  Upon information and belief, Defendants require all its bartenders and other

tipped employees employed at all its Coyote Ugly Saloon locations, including Plaintiff, to
contribute all their tips to a tip pool controlled by Defendants.

23.  Pursuant to the FLSA, Plaintiff, as a tipped employee, is only required to
contribute to a tip pool from which other tipped employees will draw.

24.  Defendants distributed, and continue to distribute, the tip pool between
bartenders, bar backs, and security personnel.

25.  On information and belief, Defendants” security personnel are not paid the tipped
credit of $2.13 per hour but are paid a wage that equals or exceeds the minimum wage.

26.  Defendants’ security personnel at its Coyote Ugly Saloons are not tipped
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employees as defined by the FLSA.

27.  Defendants’ illegal pattern and practice with respect to requiring its bartenders
and other tipped employees to share tips with non-tipped persons, specifically security personnel,
was and is in violation of the FLSA.

28.  Defendants knew or should have known that its pblicies and practices violate the
FLSA, and Defendants have not made a good faith effort to comply with the FLSA.

29.  Defendant knowingly, willfully, and/or with reckless disregard carried, and
continues to carry, out this illegal pattern or practice regarding tip sharing to Defendant's
bouncers at its Coyote Ugly Saloons.

30.  While Plaintiff was employed by Defendants, Defendants failed to pay her for all
time worked, including time worked at mandatory meetings and dance practices.

31.  Defendants deducted time worked by Plaintiff er meal breaks that she did not
take or were not a bona fide meal breaks.

32.  Defendants’ violations of Section 206 of the FLSA were willful.

33.  Defendants’ violations of Section 206 of the FLSA were not in good faith.

34.  As a result of Defendants’ failure to comply with Section 206 of the FLSA,
Defendants are liable to Plaintiff for back pay. |

35.  In addition to the amount of unpaid minimum wages owed to Plaintiff, Plaintiff is
also entitled to recover an equal amount of liquidated damages pursuant to 29 U.S.C.
Section 216(b).

36.  Plaintiff is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees bursuant t0 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

Violation of Overtime Requirement

37.  While Plaintiff was employed by Defendants, she worked as a bartender in
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Defendants’ Nashville bar and was an hourly employee who was entitled to overtime wages at a
rate of one and one-half times her regular rate of pay for hours worked over 40 in a given
workweek, pursuant to Section 207 of the FLSA.

38.  While Plaintiff was employed by Defendants, Plaintiff worked more than
40 hours per work week during certain work weeks, but was not paid overtime wages at a rate of
one and one-half times her regular rate of pay for all hours Workéd over 40 in a given workweek
as required by Section 207 of the FLSA.

39.  Defendants’ violations of Section 207 of the FLSA were willful.

40. Defendants’ violations of Section 207 of the FLSA were not in good faith.

41.  As a result of Defendants’ failure to comply with Section 207 of the FLSA,
Defendants are liable to Plaintiff for overtime back pay.

42.  In addition to the amount of unpaid overtime wages owing to Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs
are also entitled to recover an equal amount of liquidated damages pursuant to 29 U.S.C.
Section 216(b).

43.  Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of attorney’s fees pursuant to 29 U.S.C.
§ 216(b).

Similarly Situated Plaintiffs -

44.  Plaintiff is aware of other similarly situated employees and/or former employees
of Defendants who have been improperly compensated in violation of the FLSA and who would
benefit from the issuance of court-supervised notice of the present lawsuit and the opportunity to
join the lawsuit by filing a consent pursuant to Section 216(b) of the FLSA. Specifically,
Plaintiff is aware of other employees of Defendants who worked as bartenders and barbacks who

were paid a tipped rate and required to share tips with non-tipped employees, who were not paid
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for all hours worked, and who were not paid overtime wages at a rate of one and one-half times
their regular rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 during each work week. All other tipped
employees who have worked for Defendants within the last three years and who were required to
share tips with non-tipped employees and have not been paid minimum wage and who have not
been paid overtime wages for all hours worked over 40 during each work week are similarly
situated to Plaintiff and should be given notice of this lawsuit and the opportunity to join.

45.  All other similarly situated employees are also entitled to damages in the form of
back pay, liquidated damages, and attorney’s fees.

46.  Pursuant to Section 216(b), attached hereto and filed with this Complaint as
Exhibit A is a Consent to Become Party Plaintiff for Misty Blu Stewart.

WHEREFORE, the named, representative Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all
other similarly situated persons, pursuant to Section 216(b) of the FLSA, pray for the following
relief:

(a) That Plaintiff be allowed to give notice to all other potential Plaintiffs who may
be similarly situated, or that the court issue such notice;

(b) That other similarly situated former and present employees be given the
opportunity to join this lawsuit as party Plaintiffs by filing written consents pursuant to 29
U.S.C. § 216(b);

(c)  That Plaintiff and all other Plaintiffs be awarded damages in the amount of their
respective unpaid overtime compensation, plus an equal amount of liquidated damages pursuant
to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b);

(d)  Anaward of reasonable attorney’s fees;

(e) An award of the costs and expenses of this action; and
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® Such other, further general legal and equitable relief to which she may be entitled.
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Randall W. Burton, #15393
144 Second Avenue, North
Suite 212

Nashville, Tennessee 37201
(615) 620-5838

Attorney for Plaintiff
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CONSENT TO BECOME PARTY PLAINTIFF

Comes Plaintiff Misty Blu Stewart, pursuanf to 29 U.$.C.

4

to Become a Party Plaintiff in the above lawsuit.

216(b), and files this Consent

MIST\\B/‘EU STEWAR’
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Middle District of Tennessee

MISTY BLU STEWART, on behalf
of herself and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff

v.
LILIANA LOVELL

CivilAconNo. 8 11 0342

S’ N N N N N N’

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Liliana Lovell
5929 Chestnut Street
New Crleans, LA 70115.

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Randall W. Burton

144 Second Avenue, North
Suite 212

Nashville, TN 37201

(615) 620-5838

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court. '

CLERK OF CQURT

AR -1 201

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

K
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the
Middle District of Tennessee

MISTY BLU STEWART, on behalf
of herself and all others similarly situated,

Plaintff

v.
CUS NASHVILLE, LLC

Civil ActionNo. 8 11 0342

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) CUS Nashville, LLL.C

c/o BMN Corporate Services, Inc.
511 Union Street, Suite 1600
Nashville, Tennessee 37219.

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (2)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Randall W. Burton

144 Second Avenue, North
Suite 212

Nashville, TN 37201

(615) 620-5838

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief démanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF C T

APR =T 201

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AQ 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Middle District of Tennessee

MISTY BLU STEWART, on behalf
of herself and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff

v.
COYOTE UGLY SALOON ENTERTAINMENT, INC

Civil Action No. 3 11 0342

N S N N N N N

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Coyote Ugly Entertainment, Inc.
c/o The Corporation Trust Company
Corporation Trust Center
1209 Orange Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19801

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Randall W. Burton

144 Secord Avenue, North
Suite 212

Nashville, TN 37201

(615) 620-5838

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

APR -7 201

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Middle District of Tennessee

MISTY BLU STEWART, on behalf
of herself and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff

0342

v Civil Action No. 3 11

COYOTE UGLY SALOON DEVELOPMENT CORP

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) Coyote Ugly Saloon Development Corp
c/o The Corporation Trust Company
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19801

A lawsuit has been filed against you,

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:  Randall W. Burton

144 Secord Avenue, North
Suite 212

Nashville, TN 37201

(615) 620-5838

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

APR -7 2011

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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